
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To: Members of the  
 

 

STRATEGIC GROUP 

 Councillor Kate Lymer, (Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Enforcement) 
(Chairman) 

 Joanne Stowell, (LBB Assistant Director: Public Protection) (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 

 Janet Bailey, (LBB Director of Children's Services) 
Sharon Baldwin, (Safer Neighbourhood Board Chairman) 
Anne Ball, ( LBB Gangs and Serious Youth Violence Officer) 
Elaine Beadle, (LBB Road Safety Manager) 
Sara Bowrey, (LBB Director of Housing) 
Justin Brett, (Clarion-Neighbourhood Investment Officer) 
AJ Brooks, (CRC Contracts Manager) 
Sandra Campbell 
Superintendent Colin Carswell, (Metropolitan Police) 
Rachel Dunley, (LBB Head of Service for Early Intervention, and Family Support) 
Samantha Evans, Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime 
Bill Kelly, (LAS-Bromley Group Manager) 
Chief Inspector Craig Knight, (Metropolitan Police) 
Clare Lewin, (Bromley CCG) 
Betty McDonald, (LBB Head of Youth Offending Service) 
Amanda Mumford, LBB Community Safety Manager 
Katie Nash, (Acting Head of Service-London Probation Service) 
John Owen, (LFB Station Manager) 
Rachel Pankhurst, (Domestic Abuse Strategy Co-ordinator) 
Philip Powell, ( LAS Stakeholder Engagement Manager) 
Andrew Rogers, (LBB Communications Executive) 
Lynn Sellwood, (Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board and Voluntary Sector Strategic 
Network) 
Toby Smith, ( LBB Head of Street Enforcement) 
Lucien Spencer, (CRC Area Manager) 
David J Stringer, (MET-Tri-Borough Police Commander) 
David Tait, (LBB Emergency Planning and Corporate Resilience Lead) 
Chloe Todd, (LBB Public Health) 
Rob Vale, (LBB Trading Standards and Community Safety Manager) 

 

Contact for this Agenda: Steve Wood 

Tel: 020 8313 4316 
E-mail: stephen.wood@bromley.gov.uk 
London Borough of Bromley 
10 March 2020 



 
 

 

 A meeting of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group will be held at 
Committee Room 1 - Bromley Civic Centre on THURSDAY 19 MARCH 2020 at 
10.00 am  

 
A G E N D A 

 

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

3    MATTERS OUTSTANDING (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

4   QUESTIONS RECEIVED FROM COUNCILLORS OR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions that are not specific to reports 
on the agenda must have been received in writing 10 working days before the date of 
the meeting.   
 
Questions specifically concerning reports on the agenda should be received within two 
working days of the publication date of the agenda.  Please ensure that questions 
specifically regarding reports on the agenda are received by the Democratic Services 
Team by 5pm on Friday 13th March 2020. 
 

5    CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE  
 

6    POLICE UPDATE  
 

7    KNIFE CRIME AND SERIOUS VIOLENCE ACTION PLAN  
 

8    RESILIENCE UPDATE  
 

9    UPDATE FROM LONDON AMBULANCE SERVICE  
 

10    MOPAC UPDATE  
 

11    DEVELOPING THE SAFER BROMLEY STRATEGY  
 

12    SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD BOARD UPDATE  
 

13    REPORTS FROM SUB-GROUPS  
 

a    DOMESTIC ABUSE SUB GROUP UPDATE (Pages 25 - 28) 
 

b    YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE SUB GROUP UPDATE (Pages 29 - 30) 
 

c    MEGA SUB GROUP UPDATE (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

d    ASB and ENVIROCRIME SUB-GROUP UPDATE  
 



 
 

 

14    COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE  
 

15    ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

16   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 The next meeting will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on Thursday, 4th June at 
10.00am.  
 

 
  



This page is left intentionally blank



1 
 

SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGIC GROUP 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 10.00 am on 5 December 2019 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Kate Lymer ((Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and 
Enforcement)) (Chairman) 
 

Joanne Stowell ((LBB Assistant Director: Public Protection)) (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

 
 

Sharon Baldwin, (Safer Neighbourhood Board Chairman) 
Anne Ball, ( LBB Gangs and Serious Youth Violence Officer) 
Elaine Beadle, (LBB Road Safety Manager) 
AJ Brooks, (CRC Contracts Manager) 
Superintendent Colin Carswell, (Metropolitan Police) 
David Dare, (LBB Assistant Director for Children's Services) 
Rachel Dunley, (LBB Head of Service for Early Intervention, and Family 
Support) 
Bill Kelly, (LAS-Bromley Group Manager) 
Katie Nash, (Acting Head of Service-London Probation Service) 
Rachel Pankhurst, (Domestic Abuse Strategy Co-ordinator) 
Lynn Sellwood, (Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board and Voluntary Sector 
Strategic Network) 
Paul Sibun, (Adult Safeguarding Manager--Bromley CCG) 
Toby Smith, ( LBB Head of Street Enforcement) 
David Tait, (LBB Emergency Planning and Corporate Resilience Lead) 
Chloe Todd, (LBB Public Health) 
Rob Vale, (LBB Trading Standards and Community Safety Manager) 
 

 
Also Present: 

 
Cheryl Baker, Clarion Housing 
Dawn Helps, Clarion Housing Group 
Calvin Pearson-LBB Head of Options and Support 
Toks Adesuyan (LBB Housing Division) 
Judie Obeya (Neighbourhood Investment Manager—Clarion Housing)  
 
 

 

36   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Action 

Apologies were received from Claire Lewin (Bromley CCG), and Paul 
Sibun attended as substitute. 
 
Apologies were received from Janet Bailey and David Dare attended 
as alternate. 
 
Apologies were also received from Samantha Evans from MOPAC, 
Ade Adetosoye, Colin Brand, Terry Gooding, John Owen and Lydia 
Bennett. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

2 

37   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 12th 
SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

Action 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12th September 2019 were signed 
and agreed as a correct record.  
 

 

38   MATTERS OUTSTANDING 
 

Action 

The Partnership noted the matters that had arisen from the previous 
meeting. 
 
Regarding the matter of the Housing Division updating the Partnership 
around street begging and homelessness in Bromley, it was noted 
that Calvin Pearson was in attendance to represent the Housing 
Division and he would be updating the Partnership at the meeting. 
 
It was further noted that the Head of Trading Standards and 
Community Safety had been allocated a slot on the agenda to provide 
an update on Information Sharing Agreements. 
 
RESOLVED that the Matters Outstanding report and the 
associated updates are noted.  
 

 

39   QUESTIONS RECEIVED FROM COUNCILLORS OR MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC 
 

Action 

No questions had been received. 
 

 

40   CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Chairman referred to her attendance at the September Crime 
Summit and that the event had been a great success and was well 
attended. 
 
The Chairman advised the Partnership that out of £14m from 
MOPAC’s (Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime) ‘Violence Reduction 
Unit’, LBB would receive just £50k for this financial year and another 
£50k for 2020/21. The Chairman expressed the view that this was a 
rather small allocation from a fund of £14m.  
 
The Chairman stated that MOPAC had spent over a year debating 
who would be leading the VRU, and in working out the Unit’s terms of 
reference, but had only given Bromley Council two weeks notice to 
submit proposals for what the money should be spent on. Resultantly, 
the Assistant Director for Public Protection and Enforcement and 
others had to work right up until the last moment to finalise the 
proposals.  
 
As part of Children’s Social Care Practice week in September, all the 
Portfolio Holders and PDS (Policy Development and Scrutiny) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

3 
 

Chairmen were asked to observe Children’s Social Care Practioners 
in action. There were forty different opportunities to observe. The 
Chairman (acting in her capacity as the Portfolio Holder for Public 
Protection and Enforcement) felt it would be appropriate if she 
observed the activity most closely linked to the work of the Public 
Protection & Enforcement PDS Committee, and so she attended a 
MEGA Panel meeting. 
 
She explained that ‘MEGA’ stood for ‘Multi Agency Exploitation and 
Gangs Affiliation’ and was made up of various agencies, including 
representatives from the Police, Social Workers, Youth Workers, 
Oxleas and LBB’s Gangs and Serious Youth Violence Officer. Due to 
the large number of attendees, the meeting had to be held in the 
Council Chamber. 
 
The Chairman explained that the MEGA meetings were held monthly; 
the various agencies gathered together to discuss the young people 
who were on the list and who were being monitored. The panel would 
assess each case, and also assess how each individual could be 
supported, and if any interventions were required. There were nine 
young people on the list who were being monitored for potential gang 
related activity, and six young people that were on the list as they 
were in danger of potential Child Sexual Exploitation. Eleven young 
people were at risk of going ‘missing’ which meant that there could be 
a link to ‘County Lines’. The Chairman asked LBB’s Gangs and 
Serious Youth Violence Officer if she could check if such a visit would 
be open to other members of the Partnership.      
 
The Chairman informed the Committee that she had recently attended 
a meeting with relevant parties to discuss the possibility of the 
Chislehurst Society funding and managing their own private CCTV in 
Chislehurst High Street. The Chairman had also attended a 
conference at the Warren run by the BSAB (Bromley Safeguarding 
Adults Board) which looked at the issues of modern slavery and 
human trafficking. 
 
The Chairman said that she had recently attended a meeting with the 
Palace Estate Residents’ Association to discuss crime in the local 
area. Also attending the meeting were LBB’s Community Safety 
Manager, Councillors and the local Safer Neighbourhood Team. 
Residents had expressed concern about the old Conservative Club 
building in Elmfield Road which had been used by squatters and had 
become a hotspot for crime. The police were increasing patrols in the 
area; other issues that were being looked at included better use of 
lighting and CCTV. 
 
BYC (Bromley Youth Council) had undertaken a sponsored walk from 
London City Hall to Bromley Civic Centre to raise money for the 
Jimmy Mizen Foundation. The Chairman and the Deputy Leader had 
met up with BYC at the Old Palace Function Room. Jimmy’s parents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

4 

were there, and the Chairman said that it was very humbling to meet 
them and chat with them 
 
The Chairman was in Devon when the tragic bus crash occurred in 
Orpington. The Assistant Director for Public Protection and the 
Emergency Planning Lead attended the resultant Gold Group 
meeting. Since then, LBB’s Road Traffic Officers had been out with 
the police to assess the road layout and condition; in the meantime 
the Coroner’s report and recommendations were awaited. 
 
The Chairman mentioned the public discussions that had been held 
recently with residents to discuss the Council’s budget for the next 
financial year and what their key concerns were. It was noted that it 
was a statutory duty for the Council to balance its budget. 
 
RESOLVED that the Chairman’s update is noted, and that the 
Gangs and Serious Youth Violence Officer find out if other 
Partnership members would be allowed to attend a meeting of 
the children’s MEGA panel.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AB 

41   UPDATE FROM THE HOUSING DIVISION REGARDING 
HOMELESSNESS AND BEGGING IN BROMLEY- 
 

Action 

The Head of Housing Options Assessment and Support attended the 
meeting to provide an update from the Housing Division regarding 
homelessness and street begging in Bromley. 
 
Among the initiatives introduced by the Council to tackle these issues, 
‘More Homes Bromley’ had seen Bromley Council enter into a 
partnership with the Mears Group whereby Mears purchased 
properties, refurbished them to the ‘decent homes’ standard and 
managed them to house Bromley residents in need of temporary 
accommodation. More than 400 homes had been purchased so far. 
Of these, 280 had been brought up to standard and were being used.  
 
The Partnership heard that the Bromley Winter Shelter had opened on 
13th November, and would remain open until 31st March 2020. The 
sum of £20k had been allocated to provide funding for a designated 
rough sleeper worker until March 31st, and the worker would be 
starting the week following the meeting. At the time of the meeting, 
the number of beds in the shelter was 20. It was anticipated that by 
20th December, another 23 beds would be provided at a winter shelter 
in Penge. New legislation imposed a duty on local authorities to not 
just provide temporary winter accommodation, but to subsequently 
find a permanent place for them to live.    
 
The Head of Housing Options, Assessment and Support highlighted 
that an application for a grant of £90k had been submitted. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

5 
 

 
This would be used to help to alleviate homelessness in a number of 
ways, including providing the funds to employ a full time Homeless 
Pathway Worker.  
 
The Partnership was informed that currently there were 1600 people 
in temporary accommodation in Bromley, which included 900 families. 
Some of these families had unfortunately needed to be placed out of 
the borough. With the introduction of the new modular housing (Z 
Pods) it was hoped to bring many of these families back into the 
borough. Work was underway to identify suitable sites to locate the Z 
Pods in. 
 
The Homeless Division was considering the option of joint working 
with a developer to provide more housing. It was hoped that the joint 
work would commence at some point in 2021. There was much 
Greenbelt Land in Bromley and this limited where a housing 
development could be situated.     
 
The Partnership was appraised that currently there were 3000 people 
on the Housing Register; the Council had limited control over the 
Housing Register as the Council did not own any housing stock.  
 
A member asked if any data was available regarding the current 
number of rough sleepers. The Head of Housing Options Assessment 
and Support answered that when this was checked in November, the 
number of street homeless was 8; this compared with 6 and 5 for the 
respective previous two years. From the figure of 8, 4 were found in 
Bromley, 2 in Orpington, 1 in Penge and 1 in Crystal Palace. 
 
A member stated that Clare Lewin from the CCG would like the 
opportunity to make contact with the Head of Housing Options 
Assessment and Support. 
 
 Post Meeting Note: 
 
(The Committee Clerk disseminated the contact details for the Head 
of Housing Options Assessment and Support to Mr Paul Sibun from 
the CCG as agreed on December 5th)  
 
The Head of Housing Options, Assessment and Support advised that 
officers from the Housing Division would offer advice and support to 
rough sleepers, but at the end of the day the onus lay with the 
homeless person to engage and to accept assistance. This is where 
the appointment of the dedicated full time Homeless Pathway Worker 
would be key in managing the engagement process.     
 
Superintendent Carswell felt that at some point action would be 
required against those individuals who were causing a public 
nuisance but were refusing to engage with services.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

6 

 
The police expressed the view that the Partnership had a social 
responsibility to the community in these matters. Mr Carswell said that 
it may be necessary for action to be taken either in the form of 
injunctions, or by using Community Protection Notices. This would 
then force the issue into the legal process and also force the 
individual to get help. The Chairman suggested that this idea should 
be considered, and a discussion took place concerning the merits and 
demerits of this course of action.     
 
The Chairman of the BSAB (Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board) was 
concerned that vulnerable people should be properly safeguarded and 
expressed the view that there was a lack of services that provided 
drug and alcohol support. She felt that means should be used to help 
vulnerable adults before criminalising them. To this end she 
suggested the use of ‘inherent jurisdiction’  
 
Note on Inherent Jurisdiction:     
 
Before the implementation of the Mental Capacity Act (MCA), the 
means for the High Court to intervene in the life of a mentally 
incapacitated adult was founded upon the Court’s inherent jurisdiction. 
The inherent jurisdiction is a doctrine of the English common law that 
a superior court has the jurisdiction to hear any matter that comes 
before it, unless a statute or rule limits that authority or grants 
exclusive jurisdiction to some other court or tribunal. 
 
The regulations of the MCA have replaced the inherent jurisdiction of 
the High Court in the case of mentally incapacitated people. However, 
the High Court has gradually extended the use of the inherent 
jurisdiction to the group of vulnerable adults – adults who possess 
capacity but still require protection for certain reasons. 
 
The aim of the High Court in these cases is (most often) pre-emptive 
intervention; to prevent the circumstances within which an adult might 
not be able to exercise a free choice at some point in the future. 
  
A typical example here is the case of G. Although G was judged to 
have capacity to decide about having contact with her father, prior 
experience demonstrated that the contact led to significant 
deterioration in G’s mental state, including G’s mental capacity. Thus, 
pre-emptive intervention was justified to maintain her mental state. 
 
The Partnership was encouraged to note the Street Link App and to 
use this as much as possible. It was suggested that wider 
dissemination of information regarding the Street Link App should be 
provided to the public. Referral of an individual via the Street Link App 
would enable the individual to be supported by a wide range of 
services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

7 
 

Partners discussed possible links to modern slavery and organised 
crime, particularly with respect to Bulgarian and Romanian nationals. 
 
The Chairman of the SNB stated that a campaign was underway to 
educate the public into not giving cash to individuals begging on the 
streets. Collection boxes for Shelter were going to be used instead, 
and this message would be reinforced using electronic display boards. 
 
It was agreed that the LBB Head of Trading Standards and 
Community Safety would have a discussion outside of the meeting 
with the Head of Housing Options and Assessment to discuss the 
possible use of Community Protection Notices, injunctions and 
inherent jurisdiction.  
 
RESOLVED that the update from the Housing Division is noted 
and that the LBB Head of Trading Standards and Community 
Safety should have a discussion outside of the meeting with the 
Head of Housing Options and Assessment, to discuss the 
possible use of Community Protection Notices, Injunctions and 
Inherent Jurisdiction in cases where homeless individuals and 
street beggars were refusing to engage with services.    
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RV/CP 

42   REPORTS FROM SUB-GROUPS 
 

Action 

The Sub-Group updates are noted in the individual Sub-Group items.   
 

 

43   VAWG SUB-GROUP UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Head of Service for Early Intervention and Family Support and 
LBB’s new Domestic Abuse Strategy Coordinator attended to update 
the Partnership concerning developments relating to VAWG (Violence 
against Women and Girls).   
 
The Partnership was briefed that the new DVA VAWG contract had 
now been completed and had been awarded to Bromley and Croydon 
Women’s Aid. This was a one year contract but could be extended for 
a further two years depending on MOPAC funding. The KPI’s for the 
contract were being reviewed. 
 
The Partnership was informed that an event was planned for 16th 
December at the Central Library to enable partners to feed into the 
revised DVA/VAWG Strategy. This would be a morning event, and 
would be located on the 6th Floor. It was not a public event, it would 
be a Partnership event, designed to provide input into developing the 
VAWG Strategy. 
 
Post Meeting Note:  
 
The information regarding the VAWG Strategy Event was 
disseminated to Partners by LBB’s Domestic Abuse Strategy 

 

Page 11



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

8 

Coordinator on December 6th.  
 
RESOLVED that the DVA/VAWG update is noted. 
 

 43a OFFENDER MANAGEMENT SUB GROUP UPDATE  
 

Action 

The Head of Trading Standards and Community Safety provided the 
IOM (Integrated Offender Management) update and reported that the 
Operational Panel had been working well and that good progress was 
being made. There had been improved engagement from both the 
DWP and Bromley Drug Advisory Service. 
 
RESOLVED that the IOM update is noted.  
 

 

 43b YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE SUB GROUP UPDATE  
 

Action 

The Head of the Bromley Youth Offending Service was not present at 
the meeting and so the Chairman asked if the Head of YOS could 
provide the Partnership with a post meeting update.  
 
RESOLVED that the LBB Head of YOS provide a post meeting 
update that could be circulated to the Partnership.  
 

 
 
 
 
BM 

44   GANGS SUB GROUP UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Gangs Sub-Group update by Lydia Bennett, (LBB-Group 
Manager-MASH Team) had not been submitted in time for the agenda 
pack, and so was tabled at the meeting. 
 
The Chairman asked the Partners to note the report, and suggested 
that if they had any questions, then they should contact Lydia directly. 
 
RESOLVED that the Strategic Group Gangs Report is noted. 
 

 

45   ASB AND ENVIROCRIME UPDATE 
 

Action 

It was noted that Peter Sibley had now retired and had been replaced 
by Sandra Campbell as the new LBB ASB Project Officer. She had 
been involved in a Community Impact Day already, and another was 
planned for the week following the meeting. She would also be 
participating in future JAG (Joint Action Group) meetings.  
 
Mention was made of ASB that had taken place recently in Bromley 
Town Centre, where Dispersal Orders had been used. Thanks was 
expressed to Inspector Gary Byfield. A number of Acceptable 
Behaviour Contracts had been issued, and two of these had been 
escalated to Criminal Behaviour Orders. Assurances were provided 
that CCTV operatives had sufficient intelligence to support the police. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

9 
 

The Head of Trading Standards and Community Safety felt that it 
would be a good idea to bring in the Head of Housing Options and 
Support onto the JAG. 
 
RESOLVED that the Head of Housing Options and Support is 
requested to join the Joint Action Group.     
 

 
 
 
 
RV/CP 

46   POLICE UPDATE 
 

Action 

The police update was delivered by Superintendent Colin Carswell. 
 
Mr Carswell provided an update regarding the murder of a young man 
that had taken place in Penge last November. This had been 
described as a ‘honey-trap’ murder, where it was believed that the 
original intent was to rob the young man of his car. The situation 
escalated and the young man was stabbed and killed. Five individuals 
from the ‘M20’ gang had been brought to trial. One gang member was 
found guilty of conspiracy to commit murder and robbery, another two 
members were found guilty of conspiracy to commit robbery, and two 
gang members had been found not guilty.        
 
Mr Carswell said that the police were concerned about rises in 
burglary and robbery. The former was an issue in Bromley, and the 
latter was more of an issue in Croydon. The police were ‘going back 
to the drawing board’ and would be setting up a dedicated unit to deal 
exclusively with burglary and robbery. 
 
The Partnership was briefed that officer numbers had previously 
declined. Mr Carswell felt that some of the problems with recruitment 
were related to the external recruitment consultants that the police 
had been using, recruitment had subsequently been dealt with in-
house, and this seemed to have delivered better results. Now the 
police were seeing the benefit of increased government funding and 
Mr Carswell said that new recruits were ‘coming in like droves’. It was 
crucial that the new recruits were trained properly and it had to be 
borne in mind that the police would need to allocate resources to 
training. 
 
The police held the view that the bulk of the new police officers should 
be allocated to work in Bromley Town Centre where their visibility 
would be most conspicuous. Mr Carswell said that he wanted the new 
officers to be undertaking an arrest (or some other constructive 
activity) every day. It was agreed that details of the officer co-
ordinating the police training would be provided to the LBB Head of 
Trading Standards and Community Safety with a view to undertaking 
joint operations at some point.      
 
RESOLVED that the police update is noted and that details of the 
police inspector who was co-ordinating the training of the new 
police officers would be provided to the LBB Head of Trading 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC 

Page 13



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

10 

Standards and Community Safety.       
 

47   VERBAL UPDATE ON INFORMATION SHARING AGREEMENTS 
 

Action 

A verbal update concerning Information Sharing Agreements (ISAs) 
was given by the Head of Trading Standards and Community Safety. 
The Partnership was informed that this was a matter that the London 
Borough of Croydon was previously leading on for all local authorities 
in the region. A problem had arisen as the person leading on this in 
Croydon had left the authority and LB Croydon had suggested that all 
local authorities draft their own agreements. The view of Bromley 
Council was that this course of action would be problematic as it 
would result in the existence of 32 different agreements across 
London. The Head of Trading Standards and Community Safety said 
that this was a matter that was being chased with London Councils. 
He would brief the Partnership in due course when a response from 
London Councils was received. 
 
RESOLVED that the update regarding Information Sharing 
Agreements is noted and that the Head of Trading Standards and 
Community Safety report back to the Partnership when a 
response from London Councils had been received.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RV 

48   UPDATE FROM THE GANGS AND SERIOUS YOUTH VIOLENCE 
OFFICER 
 

Action 

It was noted that over 90% of gang nominals in Bromley were aged 25 
or younger. The majority of offences which gang members were 
suspects for were personal robbery and possession of an offensive 
weapon. Between September 2016 and August 2018, 411 crimes in 
the borough had been flagged by the police as ‘serious youth 
violence’, but it had to be borne in mind that this was less than 1% of 
all the number of total notifiable offences. It was reported that 20% of 
serious youth violence resulted in victims sustaining a knife injury.  
 
The Partnership discussed ‘County Lines’ and the ‘Rescue and 
Response’ pan London response programme. The data from April to 
October 2019 indicated that 28 young people were believed to be 
involved in County Lines; 15 of these were 18 plus and 13 were 17 or 
under. 
 
In terms of response, note was made of the work of the Children’s 
MEGA Panel and the work of the local police gang tasking group 
which had been working to disrupt gang activities. 
 
The Partnership was briefed that ‘Operation Divan’ was underway. 
The aim of this early knife and weapons intervention programme was 
to identify young people at risk of becoming involved in knife crime 
and provided awareness arising around the risk and consequences of 
carrying weapons.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

11 
 

 
Some young people had been identified. The project was being 
evaluated by the Police College with a further programme being run 
simultaneously by the North Yorkshire Constabulary. 
 
It was asked if ‘Operation Divan’ would involve working with parents 
and it was reported that a home or school visit would be undertaken. It 
was also asked if parenting courses could be offered to the parents of 
young people that had been identified in the trial of the Operation, and 
the answer to this was no, as the trial was operating to strict academic 
rigour between two police authorities and the elements of the trial had 
to be the same for both police forces.   
 
Mention was made of providing youth worker support in local 
hospitals. It was felt that in many cases, young people injured in gang 
related activity may be more likely to speak to a youth worker rather 
than a police officer. Mention was made of the hospital-based Youth 
Violence Intervention Programme run by the charity ‘Red Thread’. It 
was noted that this service operated at the Kings Hospital at Denmark 
Hill as this was the local major trauma centre. The Chairman 
pondered if a similar service should operate from the PRUH.      
 
It was reported that good progress had been made with the 
development of the Knife Crime and Serious Violence Action Plan, 
and the LBB Gangs and Serious Youth Violence Officer expressed 
her thanks to all of the partners that had engaged in the continued 
development of the Plan. MOPAC would be arranging visits to assess 
how the Action Plans would be developed.        
 
The Partnership was informed that 22 projects were being funded by 
a ‘Youth Endowment Fund’ and that two of these would see some 
aspect of delivery in Bromley.       
 
RESOLVED that the update from the LBB Gangs and Youth 
Violence Officer is noted and that MOPAC be contacted 
regarding the ‘Red Thread’ project in Kings at Denmark Road, to 
see if additional funding for similar work could be undertaken at 
the PRUH.     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AB 

49   DEVELOPING THE SAFER BROMLEY STRATEGY 
 

Action 

The Safer Bromley Strategy update was provided by the Assistant 
Director for Public Protection and Enforcement.  
 
The Safer Bromley Strategy had been refreshed in consultation with 
partners, and it was noted that the Crime Survey would be going for 
public consultation on 13th December. 
 
The results of the Crime Survey would be reviewed and then used to 
shape the Strategy. 

 

Page 15



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

12 

 
The revised Strategy would be presented to the Partnership in March 
2020, to seek approval and sign off. Going forward, the Safer Bromley 
Strategy would be scrutinised by the Public Protection and 
Enforcement, Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee annually.  
 
RESOLVED that the Safer Bromley Strategy update is noted. 
 

50   RESILIENCE UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Resilience and Business Continuity Update was given by the LBB 
Emergency Planning and Corporate Resilience Lead. 
 
It was reported that an external audit had taken place, this seemed to 
go well and the relevant feedback report was awaited. It was noted 
that all plans pertaining to Business Continuity would be in place by 
close of play on the day of the meeting, much of this related to the 
effective dissemination of information.  
 
It was noted that ‘Operation Bridges’ was being developed and plans 
were up to date. These were the contingency plans that would be 
actioned upon the death of either the Queen or the Duke of 
Edinburgh. 
 
Plans were well developed regarding the provision of rest centres to 
provide humanitarian assistance if required. Sixty sites could now be 
used, and it was hoped to be able to use another 30 soon after 
contacting the individual responsible for running them. Additionally, 
another potential 50 sites had been identified for consideration.  
 
Discussions had been taking place with Housing Associations to nail 
down plans for dealing with any mass displacement of the local 
population. 
 
The Bromley Resilience Forum (BRF) met on 18th November and the 
meeting was productive. A table top exercise with respect to flooding 
was undertaken. 
 
There was fortunately few serious incidents to report aside from the 
fatal bus collision that had taken place on 1st November on 
Sevenoaks Road.  
 
RESOLVED that the Business Continuity and Resilience Update 
is Noted.    
 

 

51   UPDATE FROM LONDON AMBULANCE SERVICE 
 

Action 

The Partnership was pleased to note that the LAS (London 
Ambulance Service) recruitment campaign was now bearing fruit, and 
many trainees had been recruited. It had been helpful that the LAS 

 

Page 16



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

13 
 

Training Centre for the south east was based in Bromley, as was the 
Placement Centre. Resultantly, there had been uplift in the number of 
ambulances going out. From January 1st 2020, the Bromley Group 
would be fully staffed. 
 
An update was provided concerning the Vulnerable People’s Vehicle 
(VPV) The vehicle was continuing to operate successfully and had 
reduced the number of vulnerable people going to the ED 
significantly. In fact only 52% of LAS call outs in Bromley resulted in 
the patient being conveyed to the ED. This was the lowest rate in the 
London Ambulance Service.    
 
An example case study was mentioned of an end of life patient 
suffering with breathing difficulties, but who wanted to remain at 
home. The VPV was able to provide treatment at home, and was also 
able to Facetime the patient’s family in Australia.  
 
The Bromley Group Manager said that he was working on a paper 
that would be presented at Director level to expand the usage of the 
VPV concept. It was hoped that this would result in a Trust Wide 
adoption of the proposals. An update on the VPV had also been 
provided to a Care Home Forum so that Care Homes were aware that 
their residents may not always be conveyed to the ED. 
 
RESOLVED that the LAS update is noted.     
 

52   SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD BOARD UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Chairman of the Safer Neighbourhood Board (SNB) stated that 
the SNB had held four public meetings including the Crime Summit. 
The Crime Summit had been held in September and had been a great 
success and had included: 
 

 A presentation from Bromley Youth Council regarding knife 
crime 

 A presentation from acting Inspector Kathy Thomas regarding 
‘Operation Starfish’ 

 An update from Chief Superintendent Dave Stringer around the 
new Tri-borough Basic Command Unit   

 A talk given by the Assistant Police Commissioner (Mark 
Simmons) 

 A  question and answer session which had included the SBP 
Chairman (Cllr Kate Lymer) 

 A breakout room was available where various exhibits were on 
display, including Met Trace which was proving to be very 
popular. 

 
The Chairman of the SNB summarised the 4 public meetings that had 
been convened: 
 

 

Page 17



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 
 

14 

 A meeting in Penge in collaboration with the Penge Forum 

 A meeting in Biggin Hill in April 

 The September Crime Summit 

  A meeting held in Cray Valley West 
 
SNB Board meetings had been held in between the public events. 
 
As there had been excellent community engagement in Bromley with 
the crime summit and SNB meetings, it was planned that future 
conference type activities would be held to nurture and maintain this. 
To this end, notice was given of a cyber-crime conference that was 
planned to be held in February at the Warren. This would be a 
conference about technology, and looking at new ways to use 
technology to communicate, especially with younger people. 
 
The Partnership was reminded that the Dementia Awareness week 
would be taking place in May 2020 and so it was planned to do 
something that week to highlight the fact that dementia sufferers were 
vulnerable to being scammed. This was likely to be a collaborative 
event between the SNB, Bromley Adults Safeguarding Board and LBB 
Trading Standards. 
 
The SNB Chairman said that she had met with the Chief Executive of 
MOPAC where issues such as the lack of co-ordination in the funding 
stream had been discussed and the complex nature of the 
applications for funding that needed to be submitted to MOPAC, 
bearing in mind the fact that SNBs were voluntary organisations. 
 
The Chairman of the SNB had attended a recent conference run by 
the Police Federation and the Chairman felt that it was a very valuable 
day. The Chairman had written a book full of notes. She hoped to be 
able to type up her notes and then disseminate these to the 
Partnership in due course. 
 
The Partnership heard that representatives from West Wickham and 
Mottingham had requested meetings in these areas. 
 
The SNB’s funding from MOPAC had been agreed and some money 
was now available to spend, some of which would be spent on 
supporting trial bike schemes in parks. This would leave £5k available 
as seed funding and it was hoped to use this for projects targeting 
individuals that were normally hard to engage. 
 
RESOLVED that the SNB update is noted         
 

53   COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Partnership was reminded that the Safer Bromley Newsletter had 
been distributed to everyone in Bromley—another would be sent out 
in six months’ time.  

 

Page 18



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
5 December 2019 

 

15 
 

Partners were invited to submit suggestions for articles that could be 
included in the newsletter. 
 

54   ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Action 

The Bromley CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) Adult 
Safeguarding Manager stated that a ‘Crisis Assessment Team’ was 
operational, whereby a mental health worker could attend an incident 
with the police. In these cases it was possible to divert the patient to a 
‘136 suite’ as an alternative to the individual being sectioned. He 
asked if the LAS was aware of this. The LAS responded in the 
affirmative and said that they also had access to mental health 
professionals. 
 
The Partnership noted that three Domestic Homicide Reviews were 
currently taking place, with a view to lessons being learnt. Action 
plans would be developed as appropriate, based on any lessons that 
had been derived from the reviews. Once the reviews were complete 
they would be sent to the Home Office for their attention before being 
published.  
 

 

55   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

Action 

All meetings start at 10.00am unless otherwise notified, and are held 
at Bromley Civic Centre. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for 19th March 2020.  
 
 

 

 
The meeting ended at 11.57 am 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 19



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 20



  

1 

Report No. 
CSD  

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART ONE - PUBLIC 
 
 

 

   

Decision Maker: Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 

Date:  19th March 2020  

Decision Type: Non Urgent Non Executive Non Key 

Title: MATTERS OUTSTANDING 

Contact Officer: Steve Wood, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 020 8313 4316   E-mail:  stephen.wood@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services 

Ward: N/A 

 
1. Reason for report 

1.1 Appendix A updates Group members on matters arising/outstanding from previous meetings. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Group is asked to review progress on matters arising/outstanding from previous meetings.  

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy/Financial/Legal/Personnel 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

Minutes of the last meeting, and the previous Matters Arising 
Report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3



  

2 

 
Corporate Policy 
 
1.    Policy Status: Existing Policy 
 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council/Safer Bromley 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Financial 
 

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost  
 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable 
 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services 
 

4. Total current budget for this head: £358,740 
 

5. Source of funding: 2019/2020 revenue budget 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Staff 
 

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  8 posts (6.79fte) 
 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Completion of “Matters Arising” reports 
for PP&S PDS meetings and partnership groups can take up to a few hours per meeting.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Legal 
 

1. Legal Requirement:  The Safer Bromley Partnership (SBP) has been constituted to comply with 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended by section 97 and section 98 of the Police 
Reform Act 2002 and section 1 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005). The 
‘Responsible Authorities’ identified by the Act have a statutory duty to work with other local 
agencies and organisations to develop and implement strategies to tackle crime and disorder 
including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment as well as 
the misuse of drugs in their area. 

 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Customer Impact 
 

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): This report is intended 
primarily for Members of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group. The work of the Group 
is wide ranging, dealing with crime and disorder, resilience, drug mis-use, anti-terrorism 
strategies, domestic abuse, offender management and ASB/Envirocrime. It also deals with 
youth offending and gangs. This being the case, the impact of the areas covered is borough 
wide.    

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Ward Councillor Views 
 

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  Not Applicable 
 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A 
 
 
 

Page 22



  

3 

 
 

Appendix A 
 

Minute 
Number/Title  
 

Matters Arising Update 
 

Minute 40 
Chairman’s update 
 
5th December 2019 

It was resolved that the Gangs and 
Serious Youth Violence Officer find out 
if other Partnership members would be 
allowed to attend a meeting of the 
children’s MEGA Panel 
 

An update will be provided at the 
meeting.  

Minute 41 
Update from the 
Housing Division 
 
5th December 2019 

RESOLVED that the update from the 
Housing Division is noted and that the 
LBB Head of Trading Standards and 
Community Safety should have a 
discussion outside of the meeting with 
the Head of Housing Options and 
Assessment, to discuss the possible 
use of Community Protection Notices, 
Injunctions and Inherent Jurisdiction in 
cases where homeless individuals and 
street beggars were refusing to engage 
with services.    
 

An update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

Minute 45 
ASB & Envirocrime 
 
5th December 2019 

RESOLVED that the Head of Housing 
Options and Support is requested to 
join the Joint Action Group.     
 

An update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

Minute 46 
Police Update 
 
5th December 2019 

RESOLVED that the police update is 
noted and that details of the police 
inspector who was co-ordinating the 
training of the new police officers 
would be provided to the LBB Head of 
Trading Standards and Community 
Safety.       
 

An update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

Minute 47 
Verbal Update on 
Information 
Sharing 
Agreements 
 
5th December 2019 

RESOLVED that the update regarding 
Information Sharing Agreements is 
noted and that the Head of Trading 
Standards and Community Safety 
report back to the Partnership when a 
response from London Councils had 
been received. 
 

An update will be provided at the 
meeting. 

Minute 48 
Update from the 
Gangs and Serious 
Youth Violence 
Officer 
 
5th December 2019 

RESOLVED that the update from the 
LBB Gangs and Youth Violence Officer 
is noted and that MOPAC be contacted 
regarding the ‘Red Thread’ project in 
Kings at Denmark Road, to see if 
additional funding for similar work 
could be undertaken at the PRUH.     
 

The response is set out below:  

October 2019, MOPAC procured a new 
service/s to deliver support to young 
victims of violence in five priority A&E 
sites.  
 
 
 

Page 23



  

4 

 
The five priority A&E sites are : 
•    Newham 
•    Queen Elizabeth II (Woolwich) – 
covering Greenwich & Bexley 
•    Croydon 
•    Lewisham 
•   Whittington – covering Islington & 
Haringey 
 
The intention is that the new A&E services 
will start delivering at the beginning of 
2020 and deliver for a period of 24 
months.   
 
As you can see this doesn’t include any 
similar work being undertaken at the 
PRUH. Below is the analysis used in 
selecting these five priority sites.   
 
Analysis was conducted by the MOPAC 
Evidence and Insight team and 
Information Sharing to Tackle Violence 
(ISTV) analysts to identify priority sites; 
defined as those having high numbers of 
young people presenting as victims of 
violent crime and located in boroughs that 
have high levels of knife crime  

The indicators analysed were: 

Boroughs most affected by knife crime 
with victims under the age of 25.  

The level of demand on individual EDs for 
treatment of knife injuries (LAS and ED 
data).  

The spatial distribution of young victims of 
knife crime by borough LAS conveyances 
to A and E depts. that have over 100 
attendances of young victims of knife and 
other serious wounding.  

Geographical position and proximity to 
existing MTC provision. 

 

 

Page 24



     

Safer Bromley Partnership 

Strategic Group Report 

Date report filed:    06.03.2020                                                                          

Date of last Strategic Group:      05.12.2019 

Author:     Rachel Pankhurst                                                                                     

Operational Update: DVA/VAWG 
 
The DVA VAWG services contract: 
 

 Contract monitoring/review meetings are now taking place with BCWA. We 
are continuing to look at data reporting options for 2020/21 as well as 
outcomes for service users/survivors.  

 
Best practice models, MOPAC and other DVA/VAWG related services: 
 

 Rachel has been liaising with DVA/VAWG leads in other boroughs in order 
to adopt a model of good practice of service delivery and holistic outcomes 
for survivors in Bromley. This includes colleagues in the BCU (Croydon and 
Sutton) in order to try and promote consistency across all three boroughs 
and identify opportunities where resources could be shared within the tri-
borough. Rachel has also been regularly attending MOPAC’s quarterly 
VAWG Coordinator’s Meeting at City Hall which has allowed for networking 
opportunities and shared learning.  
 

 There are plans for the current MARAC process in Bromley to be reviewed 
to bring it in line with what other boroughs are doing, particularly those in the 
South BCU.  
 

 Rachel continues to review existing services/gaps and has been working 
with other colleagues and partner agencies to establish how matters can be 
progressed – i.e. liaising with colleagues in Housing in regard to setting up a 
Sanctuary Scheme for Bromley residents and working with the Head of 
Service for Trading Standards and Community Safety in relation to the on-
going Domestic Homicide Reviews. 

 
DVA VAWG Strategy: 
 

 The DVA/VAWG Strategy event took place on the 16 December 2019 in the 
Central Library. In total 13 people attended the session which aimed to 
obtain input from colleagues and partners, in regard to content for the new 

Page 25

Agenda Item 13a



     
DVA/VAWG Strategy, which Rachel is currently working on. Rachel has 
reviewed some of the feedback captured as a result of the event and will 
consider this when writing the strategy.  
 

Publicity: 
 

 The first edition of the DVA Newsletter was disseminated in February. The 
next edition is due to go out at the end of March and will be published 
monthly thereafter. 

 

 The pocket sized, fold out information pack, which was produced in 2015 
has been given a refresh. The new design is aimed to slip in to a wallet or 
card holder and is more reader friendly than the previous design. Once it has 
been approved, we plan to get these printed on to a two sided card, in a 
material that can sustain being put through one washing machine cycle.  
 

 

Strategic Group Update:  
 
DVA Forums: 
 

 Rachel has drafted a Terms of Reference for these meetings. The inaugural 
strategic forum is due to take place on the 22.04.2020 and invites to 
strategic partners have been sent via email. This meeting will be Chaired by 
the Assistant Director for Children’s Services, David Dare. Topics on the first 
agenda will include a discussion on the Terms of Reference, and group 
membership, along with other key issues, i.e. MARAC. 
 

 The strategic forum will meet three times a year, and the meetings will be 
held in the Civic Centre for ease of access.  The meetings will be capped at 
2 hours and be focused on developing and driving forward a cohesive and 
effective multi-agency approach to dealing with, and supporting the victims 
of, DVA / VAWG.  The concepts of working together, avoiding duplication 
and shared development and learning are essential.  The strategic forum will 
be fed by a larger operational forum that will normally meet before the 
strategic forum (after this round of inaugural meetings), in order to highlight 
issues that the strategic group can tackle, champion and support. 
 

 The strategic forum is a key element of our new emerging DVA VAWG 
Strategy and will provide the governance for the operational forum.  It is 
therefore extremely important that we get the membership of the strategic 
forum right.  It needs to be people with both an interest and passion for 
tackling DVA / VAWG and the wider ripples / impact this has on families, as 
well as being people with the power and influence to enforce change within  

Page 26



     
 

their agencies to enable recommendations to be developed, tested and 
adopted.  Members of the strategic forum will be asked to nominate the 
appropriate staff within their own organisations, and any commissioned 
organisations working on or related to the DVA / VAWG agenda.  It is 
anticipated that the operational forum will be a much larger group. 

 
 

Action Plan Update:  
 
 
 
 

Action for Safer Bromley Partnership: 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 27



This page is left intentionally blank



     

Safer Bromley Partnership 

Strategic Group Youth Offending Service Report 

Date report filed:                 9 March 2020                                                                           

Date of Safer Partnership:   19 March 2020 

Author: Betty McDonald - Head of Youth Support and Youth Offending Services 

                                                                                         

Operational Update:  

 

Over the last three months we have been reviewing our progress against preparation for a 
forthcoming unannounced inspection of the YOS Partnership. This will be led by HMI Probation 
inspectorate. This report provides an update of work that has taken place and is underway 
within the service to Improve the offer to our children and young people and practice.  The 
service remains focused on improving practice to address areas for development highlighted in 
our Practice Assurance Stocktake and practice reviews. 
 
 

Of the current YOS client group, 78% (70) are male and 22% (20) are female. This is an 
increase in real terms of 16 children and young people on the same period last year, partly 
linked to group offending. The types of offences continue to be violence against the person, 
drugs and motoring offences in Bromley. The number of proven offences committed by children 
nationally has fallen and changed, however violence against the person offences involving 
children and young people have seen the greatest increase in proportion, increasing from 19% 
in the year ending March 2009 to 30% in March 2019. Of the females 4 are on referral orders 
and the rest on out of court disposals. The ages range from 6 being 14 years old, 2 are 15 years 
old with the rest (12) aged 16 years to 18 years. In regard to boys the youngest aged currently 
open to us is aged 13 years old, with the majority of boys being between ages 15-17 years old. 
In terms of girls and young women this increase is partly attributed to a group of girls offending 
together and all came into the YOS for specific offences.   
 
 

Strategic Group Update:  
 
We now have approved Youth Justice Strategy 2020 to 23 for the YOS partnership with our 
vision for children and young people at risk or involved in the youth justice system.  It specifies 
our commitment to strengthening our partnership and commitment to improving outcomes for 
our children and young people. 
Our vision is  
 
Our priorities are: 

 Reducing the  number of first time entrants 

 Reducing reoffending by children 

 Improving the safety and well-being of children 

 Addressing ethnicity disproportionality and other over representation of other protected 
characteristic and vulnerable groups. 

 Protecting the public 

Page 29

Agenda Item 13b



     
 Strengthening our Partnership Board and workforce. 

 
This strategy will inform and shape our work over the next three years and how we will improve 
practice and outcomes for children and young people at risk or involved in offending. 
 
 

Action Plan Update:  
 

Action for Safer Bromley Partnership: 
 

 

Page 30



Gang-affiliated Children’s and Young People report 
 

Report to:  Community Safety Partnership 
Report by:  Babs Onasile (Data Analyst) 
 
Date:   11/06/2019 -10/03/2020 
 
Introduction 
 
This report aims to provide information on the scale of gang affiliated children 
and young people (CYP) identified by Bromley Children’ Social Care.  
 
Missing Exploitation and Gang Affiliation panel (MEGA) 
 
In Bromley all children and young people known to be gang affiliated or at risk 
of gang affiliation are tracked through the multi-agency Missing, Exploitation 
and Gang Affiliation (MEGA) panel on a fortnightly basis. The criteria for 
making a referral to the MEGA panel require the level or risk to be medium to 
high as identified through the gang risk assessment tool.  
 
The panel enables the available information to be shared across relevant 
partner agencies in relation to identified individuals with the view of monitoring 
the reduction and mitigation of risk. The intelligence from the panel is fed back 
onto children’s files and used to help keep children safe.  
 
Data  
 
The number of CYP assessed by Children’s Social Care during the year 
2019/20 (April – March) for gang affiliation concerns was 34. This is taken 
from the cohort of CYP presented at the MEGA panel for gang affiliation. 
 

 6 out of 34 children identified as gang affiliated were on a Child 
Protection (CP) plan.  
 

 14 out of 34 children identified as gang affiliated were Children Looked 
After. 
  

 It is possible for children to be reassessed during the year, for example 
where they have had multiple episodes of need. For example where a 
young person was originally presented to the MEGA panel for gang 
affiliation concerns but due to recurrent prolonged episodes of going 
missing, the overriding need becomes child missing from home or 
placement.   
 

 Children are recorded as gang affiliated based on social work 
practitioner judgement due to the nature of crime activity and risk 
taking behaviour reported. This might include, concerns relating to drug 
dealing or county lining, previous knife offences and victim of assault. 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 13c



 It is important to note that the majority of the CYP discussed at the 
MEGA panel do not fall within the police definition and criteria for a 
‘gang member’ or a gang nominal.  
 
 

 
Demographic profile:  
 

Age at latest assessment Gang affiliation  
 

5- 9  
 

0 

10-15  
 

5 

16-17  
 

19  

18- 20 
 

10 

 
 
 

Gender  
 

Gang affiliation 

Male  
 

34 

Female  
 

0 

 
 
 

Ethnicity  
 

Gang affiliation  

White 
 

9 

Asian or Asian British 
 

1 

Black or black British 
 

14 

Mixed  
 

7 

Other ethnic group 
 

1 

Unknown 
 

2 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
Family factors  
 
Consistently across the CYP discussed at MEGA are the following family 
factors; parental substance misuse, parental mental health issues, domestic 
violence, neglect and offending in the family. 
 
Personal risks 
 
Gang affiliated CYP are more likely to have risks to their personal safety 
identified by practitioners. There are particular strong associations with going 
missing, drug/alcohol misuse, and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).  
 
School 
 
A significant number of the CYP are in alternative provision such as a Pupil 
Referral Unit (PRU) or residential placement, and have suffered School 
instability either through exclusions, periods of absence from School or mid-
year school moves. The findings of a mapping exercise to establish a 
correlation between gangs/CSE and education will be presented at the next 
MASE meeting scheduled to take place in July 2019.  
 
Summary 
 
This summary provides a small sample and a short description of the 
characteristics and scale of currently identified gang affiliation CYP known to 
the MEGA panel. This is not a complete representation of the characteristics 
of gang-affiliated children and young people in Bromley. Gang affiliation and 
gang nominal criteria vary between Children’s Social Care and the police, this 
is particularly the case given there is no consistent definition of gang affiliation 
used across areas/agencies. This analysis has done what it is possible to 
account for, based on the CYP we are aware of, but remains a limitation to 
this population.  
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	3 MATTERS OUTSTANDING
	13a DOMESTIC ABUSE SUB GROUP UPDATE
	13b YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE SUB GROUP UPDATE
	13c MEGA SUB GROUP UPDATE

